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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2021

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The trustees are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the annual financial statements
of Malcor Medical Aid Scheme ("the Scheme") which have been prepared in accordance with lnternational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Medical Schemes Act of South Africa. ln
addition, the trustees are responsible for preparing the report of the board of trustees.

The trustees:-
- consider that in preparing the annual financial statements they have used the most appropriate accounting

policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates;
- are satisfied that the information contained in the annual financial statements fairly presents the results of

operations and cash flows for the year and the financial position of the Scheme at year-end.

- are responsible for ensuring that adequate accounting records are kept. The accountang records disclose with
reasonable accuracy the financial position ofthe Scheme to enable the trustees to ensure that the annual
financial statements comply with the relevant legislation;

- are responsible for such int€rnal controls as the trustees determine are necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for
maintaining an effective system of risk management.

The Scheme operates in a well-established control environment, which is well documented and regularly
reviewed. This incorpo€tes risk managemeni and internal control procedures, which are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded and the risks facing the business are being
controlled.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual ftnancial statements. The trustees have no

reason to believe that the Scheme will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future, based on foracasts and
availabl€ cash resources. These financial statements support the viability of the Scheme.

The Scheme's external auditors, Harris Dowden & Fontaine, are responsible for auditing the annual financial
statements and their report is presented on page 16.

Harris Dowden & Fontaine have unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes

of all meetings of members, the trustees and the Audit and Risk Committee. The trustees believe lhat all their
representations made to the independent auditors during their audit were accurate and appropriate.

The annual financial statements were approved by the board of trustees on 21 Aptil 2022 and are signed on its
behalf by:

,*- '{

A MARAIS
Chairman

A LOWES
Trustee

P DORFAN
Principal otflcer
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2021

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The Malcor Medical Aid Scheme is committed to the principles and practice of fairness, responslbility,
transparency and accountability in all dealings with its stakeholders. The Scheme complies with a recognised
governance framework and conducts its affairs according to ethical values. The trustees are proposed and
elected by the members of the Scheme.

The board of trustees view good governance not only as complying with legislative provisions and applying the
relevant principles of King on corporate governance, but view it as integral to the success, sustainability and
financial soundness of the Malcor Medical Scheme. The trustees are satisfied that the Scheme has in all material
respects complied with the provisions and spirit of its rules, the iredical Schemes Act 131 of '1998, as amended
and its regulations, other than those matters noted in the Board of Trustees report.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The board of trustees meets regularly and monitors the performance of the administrator and other service
providers. They address a range of key issues and ensure discussion of items of policy, skategy and
performance are informed and constructive.

All trustees have access to the advice and servicas of the principal offic€r and, where appropriate, may seek
independent professional advice at the cost of the Scheme.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The trustees are accountable for the process of risk management and internal controls. Risks are reviewed and
identified on an ongoing basis and appropriate strategies are implemented and monitored.

The trustees have established an Audit and Risk Committee ("ARC") mandated under terms of reference to
oversee all risk and corporate governance issues pertaining to the Scheme in accordance with accepted
corporate governance practices.

The administrators of the Scheme maintain internal controls and systems designed to provide reasonable
assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements and to safeguard, verify and maintain
accountability for its assets adequately. Such controls are based on established policies and procedures and are
implemented by trained personnel with the appropriate segregation of duties.

No event or item has come to the attention of the board of trustees that indicates any material breakdown in the
functioning ofthe key controls and systems during the year under review.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING OF BUDGETS

The budget for the Scheme is set annually and approved by the trustees. The performance against budget is

monitored monthly by the trustees and agreed remedial actions are implemented.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING OF TERMS OF REFERENCE

The trustees approve the terms of reference of the ARC and monitor its performance against it.

1-l--, ,2. ,\l

A MARAIS

Chairman

21 Apfll2022

A LOWES

Trustee

P DORFAN

Principal Officer
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSIEES
for the year ended 3'l December 2021

The board of trustees ("lhe Board") hereby presents its repon for the year ended 31 Dec€mber 2021.

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE i'EDICAL SCHEME

1.1. Terms of rggiabation

The Malcor N,ledical Aid Scheme ("the Scheme") is a restricted membership scheme regislered in terms of
the Medical Schemes Act No 131 of 1998 (,,the Act',).

The Scheme operales for the beneft of its members and its trustees oversee and govern the business of
the Scheme on behalfof its members.

1.2. Benefit optiong with Malcor Medic€l Aid Schome

The Scheme offered 4 benefit options to its members during the year - plans A, B, C and D.

Plans A, B and C are graded non-savings benefil options, while Plan D is a low-cost benefii option
serviced by National Healthcare Group (Pty) Ltd ("Nationat Heatthcare,,). National Heatthoare has in
retum for a capitation fee, assumed the risk of providing the Plan D members with the medical benefits
permitted by the Plan.

2. SCHEME IIIANAGEMENTAND THIRD PARW SERVICE PROVIDERS

2.1 Board of trustges

Ihe trustees are all elected by the members. Elections are held every three years and the most recent
election was held during the 2019 financial year. The next election will be held during the 2022 financial
year.

The Board are also entitled in terms of the Scheme rules to appoinl I trustee to fll a vacancy during the
financialyea.to hold oflice untilthe next annualgeneral meeting.

Ihe board of trustees during the year under review and at the date of this repon \,vere:

Name

A Marais (Chairman)

J Els
L James
A Lowes
C Botha (Resigned 29 September 2021)
W Scott
C Van Zitters
R Verster
R Govender
P Dorfan (Principal Offcer)

A -Actual number ol meeiings attended
B - Total possible meetings

Number of meetinqs
attended durino the vear

There !,lere 5 trustee meetings held during the year under .eview and none of the trustees, other than the
chai.person received remuneration relating to Buch services. The chairperson received remuneration of
R96,371 (2020: R95,000) for his seMces to the Scheme during the year.

AE
55
35

45
45
55
55

55
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEIIiE

A'{NUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2. SGHEME IiA AGEMENT At{D THTRD PARTY SERVTCE PROV|OERS (continued)

2.2. P.lnclpal orficer

P Dorfan

16 Jarsey Drive P O 8ox 8012
Longmeadow Business Estate Easl Greenslone
Edenvale 1616

The p ncipal offjcer received remune.alion of R677,981 (2020: R696,813) for his servaces to th6 Scheme
dudng the year.

2.3. Regietered olfic6 and po5tal addeaa of the Schome

Discov€ry Heallh Head Office P O Aox7A6722
I Discovery Place Sandlon
Sandton 2146

2.21. Schemoadmlnlst'ator

Disc.very Health (Pty) Ltd
Accreditation number: r g

Oiscovery Health H€ad Office P O Box7A6722
I Discovery Place Sandton
Sandton 2146

2.5. ilanaged care admlnl3tfators

oiscovery Health (Pty) Ltd

Managed care accreditation number 6
Discovery Hoalth Head Office P O Box7A6722
1 Discovery Place Sandlon

Sandton 2146

National Healthcare Group (Pty) Ltd

Nlanaged care acseditation number 22

Route 21 Corporate Park P O Box 11480

72 Regency Orive Queenswood

lrene 0121

2.6. lnvestnentadvlaoB

P Risby
Financial service provider numbet: 1177
Alexander Forbes Financlal Services (Piy) Ltd P O Box 785451
115 West Street Sandton

(Termination date: 31 January2021)

Financial service provider number: 873

Sygnia Asset lvanagement (Pty) Ltd

Kathorine & West Bualding, West Slreel

2196
(Appointment dater 1 Febtuary 2021)

2146

7th Floor, The Foundry

Green Poinl

Cape Town

8001
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MALCOR IiIEDICAL AID SCHEME

AI,I}IUA! REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
for ihe year end€d 31 Oecemb€r 2021

2. SCHEME MAI,IAGEMEiITAND THIRO PARTY SERVICE PROVIDERS (continued)

2,7, Auditor8

Haftis Dowden & Fontaine
IRBA regist'ation numberi 943703
7 Pam Road P O 8ox651129
lromingside Benmoae

Sandton 2O1O

2.8. Scheme committeeB

ln accordance wilh good corporate govemance and the provisions of the Act, the Scheme has ao Audit
and Risk committee ("ARC"). The ARC is appointed by the trustees and mandat€d by them by means of
w tten terms of reference as to its membership, authority and dutieg. The ARC is required to have a

minimum of fve membeas the majority ofwhom. includiog the chairman, are not omcers oflhe Scheme or
its administralor.

The primary responsibility of the members of the ARC is to assist the board of trustees in carrying out its
duty relating to lhe Scheme's accounting policiB, intemsl control system3, linancial reporting and
corporate govemance practices and dsk management, The extemaland internal auditors formally rcport to

theARC on the criticalfndings arising from their audits.

The kustees monitor the performance ol lhe ARC against its rclated terms of reference. No deficiencies
$Jere noted ior the 2021 fin6ncial year,

The ARC in trm, make recommendaljons to the trustees arising flom their abovemenlioned duti6s.

The ARC members during the year under revaew and at date of lhis report were:

NAme Number of meetinos

Ag
lfidependent members:

G Kapp (Chaime.son) 3 3

J Englund 3 3

E Toerien 1 3

M Lorgat 2 3

Trustee memb6rs:

A Lowes 3 3

JEls 3 3

PrincipalOfiicefl
P Dorhn 3 3

A - Actual number of meetings attended
B ' Total possible meetings
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IiIALCOR TIEDICAL AID SCHEME

ANI{UAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
for th€ year end6d 3'l December 2021

2. ScHElrE MAIIAGEMENT ANO THIRD PARTY SERVICE PROVIDERS (comlnued)

2.8. Schemecommittees(continued)

The principal officer of the Scheme and representatives of lhe administrators as 
',€ll 

as lhe internal and
external auditors are invited to attend allARC meetings and have unrestricted access to the chairpeBon of
the committee.

there wErE 3 ARC meetings held dudng the year under review and none of the ARC members, with the
exception of the ARC chairyeEon, received any rcmuneration or was reimbursed for any expenditure
relaling to such servaces.

The chaimercon received remuneration of R45,365 (2020: R56,750) for his services to lhe Scheme dudng

The ARC reported that:
. lt carried out ats duties in terms of the Act and ils terms of referenc€ approved by the BGrd.
. The external auditors have confirmed theil independonce.

' The combined assurance provided by managemeni and the external and intemal auditorc has led

them to conclude that lhe intemalcontrols of the Scheme are adequate and effective.

' lt has review€d the Sch€me's annualinaocial statements and accounting policies, obiBined
assulance flom the external auditors in ihis legad and recommended the adoption of the annual
financial slatements by the Board for prcsentation to members.

3. I'TANAGEMEI{T OF RISK

3,1. Commercialaeinauance

Since inception of th€ Scheme the trusiees have believed it is in the best interest of lhe memberc to have

a stop]oss r€in$rrance cover lo protect the Scheme irom signilicant losses.

Prioa to the 2013 financisl year, the trustees arranged for lhe Scheme to hav€ this cover wilh the approval
of the Council icr lvledical Schemes ("Council'). The Scheme was then responsible for the related

Ginsurance premiums and was entitled to lhe proceeds of lhe related claims.

With effect f.om 1 January 2013, the jndividual employer groups elected to arange for the stoFloss
reinsurance to be entered jnto by the aespectve employers of the Scheme's members. Although the

einsurance premiums are borne by such employerc, they have undertak€n to continue to paovide the

Scheme with the benefit of any related reinsurance claims by Paying such amounts into lhe Scheme by

way of additional funding.

3.2 Risk tlanslff aEangements

National Heallhcare GrcLrp (Pty) Ltd providas Plan 0 membe.swith the medical benefits attributable to the

Plan in retum for a capitalion fee. This i3 disclosed in the current annual financial statements and i9 the

only dsk t€nsier anangemenl.
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MALCOR MEDICAL AIO SCHEME

ANI{UAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
ior the year ended 31 December2O2l

MA'{AGEMEI{T OF RISK (Continued}

lnv*trnent akategy

The Scheme's investment stralegy is to ensure there is a sum equivelent lo at l€ast tlo month's expected
cleims and adminislration cogts in the Schem6's bank accounts and that the investments comply with the
regulalions of the Acl. Within this ov€rall strategy th6 objective is to invest no more than 40% in equities
100% in cash or boncls and 5% in property holding investments. The Scheme adhered to the investment
stralegy and at year end had invested 19.22% l2O2O: 19.73o/ot of the Scheme's tunds available for
invBlrnent in equitjes, 76.57% l2O2O: 79 -73o/61 in c:rsh or bonds and 0.48% (2020: 0.54%) an equili* in
prcperty holdino inveslments. The retum achieved on available-for-sale invesiments as a percenlage of
thew€ighted average tair value per monlh irr lhe year under reviewwas 6.770 12020:4.A2o/ol.

All invostments are in the narne of the Scheme and no withd€wal or investment changes are permitled
wilhout the approvalofthe trustees and the writtefl approval oflhe pnncipal omcer.

Th€ trustees of th€ Scheme review the alloc€tion and performarE€ of inveslmenls on a querterly basis to
monilor the retums and ensure compliance with lhe Acl and r€view the inveslrnent policy on an annual
basis. Advice in resp€ct of specific funds in which the Scheme is invested b taken from the Schemes
investmeal advisor and prof6ssional asset consultants, The Scheme has elected an investment sub-
commitee during the curent year.

The investment sub-aommitee members dudng the year underreviewand at date of this report were:

NeDe

A Marais (Chainnan)

P Oorfan (PO)

C Bolha

2
2
2

1

A - Actualnumber ofmeetings attended
B - Toial possibla me€tingg

Details of investments are set oi.il in the annual fnancial stalemenb.

Number of meelinos

AB
2
2
2

2
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],ALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

AI{NUAI REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
iorthe ye€r ended 3'l De66mbar 2021

3.

3.4

MANAGEMENT OF RISK (Coitinued)

Management of in6urance riak

The primary insurance activity carried out by the Scheme assumes the risk of loss incurred by memt€rs
and their dependants relating to medic€lcare, These risks relate to lie heallh of lhe Scieme members, As
such the Scheme is exposed to the uncertainty sunounding the liming and severity of medical claims
made by its members.

The Scheme manages ats insurance risk through benefit limib and sub-limits, approval procedures for
transactions that involve pricing guidelines, pre-suthorisation and case management, service provider
proiling, cenlralbed management oflhe risk transfer arrangemenl, as \,vell as the monito ng of emerging
issues, and, as detailed under 3.1 above, by stolloss reinsurance cover.

The Scheme uses several melhods to assegs ancl monitor insurance risk exposures for both individual
types of risks insured and overall fisks. The principal risk is lhat the frequency and severily of claims are
greater than expected.

An assessment ofthe major risks affecting the Scheme and lhe most effective manner in which these rasks

may be mitigated is considered by the ARC and the Board on a regular basis.

lnsu€nce events are, by their nature, random, and the actual number and size of events during any one
year may vary from those eslimated using established statistical techniques. There vvere no changes to
assumplions used to measure insurance as3ets and liabilities that have a material effect on the annual
financial statements and there were no terms and conditions of insu€nc€ c,ontracts that have a material
efisct on the amount, timing and uncertainty of the Scheme's cash flows.

3.5. COVTD-1g

Ouring 2O2O and up to 22 March 2022, 2,437 beneficiaries of Malcor Medical Aid Scheme members tested
positive for COVID-1g, 2,373 beneficiafes recovered and 41 benefciaries passed away. The Scheme's
COVID-.|g related claims costs (i.€. costs for tesls, consultations, medicine and hospitalisation) was
approximately R41 .59m u p lo 22 March 2022 l14.Ooyo of risk conlributions).

The T rstees have monitored the impact of the COVIO-Ig pandemic on the Scheme closely during 2021.
The Trustees u/ere provided with regular updates in respect of the COVID-1g pandemic regarding

emerging trends in the country in general es w€ll as within the medical induslry and for the Scheme.

Claims costs in 2021 wero slaghtly lower than budget as was the case in 2020, iollowing lhe further
cancellation and/or postponement of elective surge es as well as a general reduction in the utilisaiion of
other medical seffices. Allhough lhe Scheme experaenced a lower than anticipated claims exp€dence ior
2021, the claims ratio has increased lrom 86.13% at the end of 2020 to 94.69y. in 2021 in response to

shortea and less strict lockdown rostrictions lhan 2020. Th;s resulled in a gross healthc€rc surplus of R

1 5.61 m for 2021 wilh the solvency €tio increasing to 45. E7ol0.

It should be noted that it is still expecled lhat lhere will be a cetch up of some of the services during the

course of 2022. Some of the sunluses generated in 2021 will thereiore be required to fund the catch-up of
claims in future. The tming and extenl of th€ c€tch-up i3 uncedain at this siage since this witl be impacted

by potential tuture waves of COVID iniections.

Ptovision fot COVID vaccinations

COVID-1g vaccination data, recently received from the oepartmonl of Health frcm the EVDS system,

showed that a significant number of members hacl been vaccinated for COVlDlg at public vaccination

siies but that a significanl portion of cost at these sites have not yet been billed l'o the Scheme. Therefore,

an additional IBNR allowance should be made in for lhese COVID_1g vaccine costs The IBNR amount
wes determined b6sed on the number of dosos received by members lo dale that have not yet been billed

multiplied by the assumed cost tor each dose (including both the vaccine and adminisiration components).
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

lor the year ended 31 December 2021

4. OPERATIONALSTATISTICS

The detailed statistjcs per plan are reflected in the table below:

Number ol members at end ofthe Year

Number of beneliciaries at the end ofthe year

Average number of members per month

Average number of beneficiaries per month

Average number of beneficiaries per member at year-

end

Dependant ratio to members at year-end

Average age of beneficiaries at the beginning ofthe
year

Pensioner ratio (beneficiaries >65 years)

Number of beneliciaries registered for chronic

conditions at year end

Average per month

Risk Gontributions per member (R')

Risk contributions per beneflciary (R')

Relevant healthcare expenditure per member (R')

Relevant healthcare expenditure per beneficiary (R')

Non-healthcare expenditure per member (R')

Non-healthcare expenditure per beneflciary (R')

Accumulated funds per member at year-end (R')

Relevant healthcare expenditure as % of risk

contribution income

Managed care as % of risk contribution income

Administration expenditure as % of risk contribution

income

Non-healthcare expenditure as % of risk contribution

income

5.5% 1% 8.1% 8.1% o%

Plan A

2021 2020 Yo

669 723 -7%

1,609 1,762 -s'

686 760 -10on

1,663 1,851 -10%

2.41 2.44 -1'k

1.41 1.44 -2%

43.4 42.5 2%

16.0% 14.5o/o look

798 877 4',

8,442 8,086 4%

3,482 3,320 50/o

9,274 8,535 so/6

3,825 3,504 sok

309 292 6eo

127 120 6%

n/a nla
'1O9.9!o 105.6% q't

1.4% ',1.40/o -to

2.60A 3 .4o/o -24.

3.7o 3.6yo .1"k

Plan B

2021 2020 0a

3,000 3,085 -3%

7,685 7,873 '2%

3,034 3,198 -5%

7,730 8,144 's%

2.56 2.55 0%

1.56 1.55 1%

31.0 30.5 20k

4.0o/" 3.60/0 lovo

2p67 2,015 3%

5,460 5,'196 5%

2,',143 2,040 5%

5,054 4,286 180

1,984 .1,683 180/0

301 284 6%

't 18 112 6%

nla n/a

92.6% 82.5o/o 12o

2j% 2.2o/o -1%

4.0% 5.3% -25%

Plan C

202',1 2020 %

599 589 20k

1 ,089 1 ,07 1 20k

598 579 30k

1,OA2 1,057 20

1.82 1.A2 00

0.82 0.82 0%

31.1 30.7 1o/a

5.7Yo 5.4o/o 6o

196 181 8%

3,559 3,444 3%

't,967 1,887 40k

2,517 1,945 2e%

1,391 1,066 31%

289 279 40

'160 153 50/o

nla nla

70.7o/o 56.50/0 zsvo

3.30/o

6.1%

3.3o/o ovo

8.0o/o -24v6

Plan D

2021 2020

139 134

256 240

139 133

254 237

1.84 1.79

0.84 0.79

33.6 34.0

10.4% 11.3%

27 27

1,961 1,814

1,073 1,018

1,739 1,585

952 889

150 144

82 8'1

nla nla

88.70/" 87.4./o

6.9% 7.30/o

7.6% 7.9%

Total Scheme

2021 2020 0

4,407 4,531 -3%

10,639 10,946 -a%

4,457 4,670 -s%

'lo ,729 11 ,289 -5\6

2.4't 2.42 0%

1.41 1.42 0%

33.1 32.6 2%

6.20 5_7yo s%

3,087 3,'100 0%

5,554 5,353 4%

2,307 2,214 4%

5,260 4,6',t0 14%

2,185 1,907 15vo

296 281 5%

123 116 6%

33,225 27,613 2oo/o

94.7% 86.1% 10%

2.Oo/o 2.Oyo o%

3.9o/o 5.0o/o _24%

5.3o 5.3o/. 1o/a

7%

50h

3%

-aok

o%

60/o

-1%

Alt

50k

10%

'7o/o

4o/o

2%

5.50/"
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MALCOR II/IEDICAL AID SCHEME

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
for the year ended 31 December 2021

5.

5.1.

REVIEW OF RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

Results of operations

The results of the operations of the Scheme are set out in the annual financial statements, and the trustees
believe that no further clarification is necessary.

5.2. Operational statistics for the Scheme

Amount paid to administrators
- Administration fee (Note 'i0 to the annual financial statements)
- Managed care fee (Note 9 to the annual llnancial statements)
Total

Accumulated funds ratio

The accumulated funds ratio is calculated as follows:
Total members' funds per statement of financial position

Less: Cumulative fair value gain on investments
Accumulated funds per Regulation 29

Risk contributions

Accumulated funds ratio

(accumulated funds/risk annual contribution income x 100)

146,424 125,114
t'ln 16r\

___136,nL ___125714_

17,449

2020
R'000

'l't,594
6,124

______11_JE_

2021
R'000

't1,450

5.3.

297,072 299,966

41.71%

Reserve accounts

Movement in the reserve is set out in the statement of changes in funds and reserve. Other than the impact

of COVID-19, there have been no unusual movements that the trustees believe should be brought to the

attention of members of the Scheme.

Outstanding risk claims provision

The basis of calculation of the outstanding risk claims provision and the movement in the provision are set

out in Note 5 to the annual financial statements. Other than noted in part 3.5 of this report relating to the

provision for COVID-19 vaccinations, the basis of calculation is consistent with the prior year and there have
'been 

no unusual movements that the trustees believe should be brought to the attention of the members of

the Scheme.

5-6- Other

It is evident from the operational statistics set out in note 4 to this report that, ignoring Plan D for which the

operating responsibitity is oulsourced to National Healthcare Group (Pty) Ltd, the average net relevant

healthcire expenditure per beneficiary per month reflects an increase of 9% for Plan A, an increase of 18%

for plan B and a increase of 31o/o lor Plan C. This is more than initially expected in view of the generally

better tariffs that were negotiated for the Scheme by Discovery Health for 2021'

45.870/o

5.4.
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEiiIE

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
for the year ended 31 December 2021

6. INVESTMENTS llrl AND LOANS TO EMPLOYERS OF MEMBERS OF THE SCHEME AND TO OTHER
RELATED PARTIES

With the exception of the indirect inveslments in Aspen Pharmacare Holdings Limited and Discovery
Holdings Limited detailed in paragraph 12(2) below, the Scheme did not hold shares in any related party or
in companies whose employees are members of the Scheme.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transaciions are set out in Note l6 to the annual financial statements.

8. ACTUARIAL SERVICES

The Scheme's actuary was consulted in the determination of the contributions and benefit levels.

9. FIDELITY AND PROFESSIONAL INDEMNITY INSURANCE

ln terms of section 33(3) of the Medical Schemes Act, Camargue UndeMriting Managers Proprietary
Limited, undeMritten by Bryte lnsurance Company Ltd, Compass lnsurance Company Ltd and Lloyds Bank

Of London Ltd, has provided professional indemnity and iidelity insurance of R25 million (2020: R25 million)

to the Scheme.

IO. INTERNAL AUDIT

Discovery Health lnternal Audit provided the ARC with an annual internal audit plan for discussion, regular
feedback on their findings, suggested improvements on internal controls as well as feedback on the
progress of the audits against the approved audit plan. The external auditors also liaised with Discovery

Health lnternal Audit to ensure they could minimise their audit procedures in lhe areas covered by Discovery

Health lnternalAudit.

11. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There were no other events after the reporting date that had a material impact on the Scheme.
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
for the year ended 31 December 202'1

12. AREAS OF NON COMPLIANCE wlTH MEDICAL SCHEME LEGISLATION FOR THE YEAR UNDER
REVIEW

Although they may not be material in amount or effect, the lruslees are required by the Council for Medical
Schemes to report on all matters of non-compliance with the Act irrespective of whether or not the external
auditors consider the non-compliance as material. ln accordance with this requirement, the trustees note:

12.1. Late payment of contributions

Naturc and impact
ln terms of Section 26(7) of the Act, contributions should be received in accordance with the rules of the
Scheme. ln terms of the Scheme rules, contributions are required to be received no later than three days
after their due date. During the financial year certain contributions were identitied that were nol paid to the
Scheme within this deadline period.

Cauaes of failurc
The failure was mainly caused due to administrative delays by certain participating employers in paying over
their respective contributions to the Scheme.

Corrective action
Whilst every effort is made through credit control procedures to enforce this requirement, the onus is on the
member/employer group to ensure compliance. The loss of inlerest to the Scheme from this delay is
minimal,

12.2. lnvestments in participating employets and medical scheme administratoE

Nature and impact
Section 35(8)(a), (c) and (d) of the Act states that a medical scheme shall not invest any of its assets in
participating employers, medical scheme administrators or persons associated with these organisations.
During the year the Scheme did have investments in certain of these organisations.

causes offailure
The Scheme invests in investment vehicles which allow inveslment managers discretion to invest in

organisations of their choice. Certain of these choices have resulted in the Scheme having investments in

organisations which are in conflict with this Section of the Act.

Corrective action
The Scheme has received exemption from the provisions of this Section from Council on the grounds that

the investments are made, without reference to the Scheme, by the asset managerc in the portfolios in which

the Scheme invests. These investment choices are therefore nol influenced by the Scheme.
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
for the year ended 3l December 2021

12, AREAS OF NON GOMPLIANCE wlTH MEDICAL SCHEME LEGISLATIOT{ FOR THE YEAR UNDER
REVIEW (continued)

12.3. Sustainability of benefit options

aturc and impact
ln terms of section 33(2) of the Act, each benelit option shall be self-supporting in lerms of membership and
financial performance. At 31 Decembet 2021 one of the four benefit options incurred deficits as set out in
note 14 to the annual ,inancial statements.

Causes of failure
Plan A was deliberately costed to incur a deficit as the increase in contributions necessary to achieve a
surplus would have been loo onerous for members on this plan and might lead to members changing to
other plans to the detriment of the Scheme as a whole.

Corrective action
The Trustees are expecting this trend for Plan A to continue in future. The performance ofall benefit options
is monitored on a continuous basis with a view to improving lheir financial outcomes, and the Scheme
continually evaluates different strategies lo address the deficit in these benefit options.

When structuring benefit options, the financial sustainability of all the benefit options is considered. The
different financial positions reflect the different disease burdens in each benefit option, among many other
factors. The Scheme's slrategy on the sustainability of benefit options has lo balance short and long-term
financial considerations, fairness to both healthy and sick members, and continued affordability of cover for
members with different levels of income and healthcare needs. While the Scheme is committed to complying
wherever possible wilh the applicable legislation, it also focuses intensively on lhe overall stability and
financial position of the Scheme as a whole and not only individual benefit options.

ln addition, the Scheme continually provides the Registrar with updates on both the Scheme and individual

benefit option performance through the monthly management accounts and quarterly monitoring meetings.
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
for the year ended 31 December 2021

12. AREAS OF NON COMPLIANCE wlTH MEDICAL SCHEME LEGISLATION FOR THE YEAR UNDER
REVIEW (continued)

'i2,4. Late payment of claims

Nature and impact
Section 59(2) of the Act requires that medical schemes shall pay a member or a supplier of service, any

benelit owing to that member or supplier of service within 30 days after the day on which the claim in respect
of such benefit was received by lhe medical scheme.

causes of failure
Late payment of claims usually resulted from members or providers submitting claims without the necessary

details for these payments to be made timeously. These are isolated cases and thus do not have a material

effect on the Scheme.

Corrective action
The necessary assistance is provided to the identified members and healthcare providers to ensure that

these types of isolated cases are minimised.
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HARRIS DOWDEN & FONTAINE CHARTERED AccoUNTANTs (SA)

IRBA Regisrrarion No: 943703

7 Pam Road, Morningside, 2196

rerephone ; r,,ifu"-r# il1?',ti']fi li:?3i3
R,T. I.lanis, B.J. Dowden. C.L.l. Fonlainc

E-Mail hd(Alotr co.za

lndependenl Audltor's Reporl

To the Members of Molcor Medicol Aid Scheme

Reporl on lhe oudil of lho Finonclol Slolsmenls
For lhe yeor ended 3l D€combsr 2021

Oplnion

we hove oudlted the finonclol stotements of Molcor Medicol Aid scheme (the scheme), set oul on
poges 2l to 56, which comprise the stotemeni of flnonclol posltlon os oi 3l December 202] ond ihe
slo'temeni of comprehensive lncome, th€ stotement of chonges in members'funds ond the stolemen'i
of cosh flows for the yeor then ended, ond notes to the finonclol stolemenls, lncluding o summory of
significont occounting policies,

ln our opjnion, these finonciol slotements present fokly, ln oll moteriol respects, the finonclol posiiion of
Molcor Medlcol Ald scheme os ot 3l Decembet 2021 ond its finonciol performonce ond cosh flows
for the yeor lhen ended in occordonce with lnlernotionol Finonciol Reporting Stondqrds ond the
requkemenis of the Medlcol Schemes Act of South Africo.

Bosis lot Opinion

We conducted our oudil ln occordonce wiih lniernotlonol Stondords on Audlting (SAf). Our
responsibrilities under those slondords ore further described ln ihe Audllor's Responsibilliies for ihe Audit
of ihe Flnonclol Stotements section of our report. We ore independent of the Scheme ln occordonce
with the hdependent Regulotory Boord for Auditors Code of Professionol Conduct for Registered
Audltors (IRBA Code) ond other independence requirements oppllcoble to performlng oudlts of
finonclol siotements in South Africq. We hove fulfilled our other ethicol responsibililles ln qccordonce
with lhe IRBA Code ond in occordonce wiih other ethlcol requkements opplicoble to perForming
oudits ln South Africo. The IRBA Code ls consisteni with ihe lnternoilonol Ethics Stondords Boord for
Accountonts Code oI Ethics for Professionol Accountonts (Ports A ond B), We believe thoi the oudit
evldence we hove obtoined ls sutflcient ond opproprlote to provide o bosls for our opinion.

Key Audit Malle6

Key oudit motiers ore those motters ihot, in our professionol judgement, were of most slgnlficonce ln
our oudlt of the flnonciol stotements for the current yeor, These molters were oddressed ln the
coniext of our audit of the finonciol slotements os o whole, ond in forming our opinlon thereon, ond
wo do not provlde o seporoie oplnlon on lhese motters.

I . Ouistonding clolms provislon:

lnternotionol Finonciol Reportlng Stondords (IFRS) requires the scheme to moke provision for oll
future cosh outflows for which o post event hos occurred.

As dlsclosed in Note 5 to the onnuol flnonclol stotements, the corrying omount of the Oulsionding
Cloims Provlsion ("IBNR") ot yeor end wos R 5,750,000. The determlnotion of the IBNR requlres the
Scheme's Trustees to moke ossumpiions ond slgnlficont judgement in the valuotion thereof, which
is deiermlned with reference to on eslimotlon of ihe ultimoie cost of settling oll cloims incurred
bul not yel reported ot the Stotemenl of Finonciol Posltion dote,
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Key Audil Motte6 (conlinuad)

How the motler wos oddressed in lhe audit:

ln evoluoting the voluotion of the IBNR, we oudlted the colcu oilons opproved by the Boord of
Trustees ond performeci vorious procedures including fhe followlng:

. Testing the Scheme's controls reloting to the preporotion of the IBNR colculotion;
' Tesilng the integrity of the informotlon used in the colculotion of the IBNR by perForming

substontive procedures, on o somple bosis, on the completeness ond occurocy of the cloims
doto used in calculoting the IBNR;

' Performonce of on lndependent estimote ot the IBNR using substontlve onolyticol proc€dures
thot lnvolved hisioricol clolms doto ond trends ond comporing the estimote to ihe Scheme's
JBNR:

' PerFormonce of tesis of detoils on the current yeor IBNR hcludhg tesllng ociuol cloims
experienced subsequent to yeor end ond to os close os posslble to oudit completlon dot6;
ond

' Performonce of q retrospecllve review of the IBNR roised in ihe 2020 finonciol yeor bosed on
octuol clolms pold ln 2021 io verify the ossumptions opplied to determine the IENR ore
reosonoble,

The ossumpiions opplled in the IBNR ore oppropriote ond we ore sotlsfied thot lhe movement of
the IBNR in ihe Stolement of Comprehensive lncome ond the reloted dlsclosure of the IBNR
bolonce, in the Stotemenl of Finonciol Posiiion ond ossumptions ore oppropriote.

We engoge with monog€ment oround the rotionole for ony odjustments or decisions over ond
obove the numeric cqlcuiotlon.

2. Cloims ond contributions:

Clolms ond contributions ore slgnificont closses of lronsoctions ln the onnuol finonclol stoiements
of the scheme. These ore olso sub.iect to significont risk of froud or moteriol misstolement, The
scheme ploces significont relionce on lhe system of internoi conirols ond vorlous onolytlcol ond
sysiem bosed checks ,o ensure lhoi oll cloims ond conlrlbuiions ore volld ond occuroie.

How ihe motter wos oddressed in the oudit:

During the oudit the cloims system is subjected to vorious lests of controls ond exceptlon reports
ore reviewed.

3, Risk lronster Arrongement:

The Scheme hos entered lnto o risk tronsfer onongement with Notionol Heolthcore Group
Propdetory Llmiied (formerly Enoblemed Proprleiory Limlted) (lhe Cqpltoior') for the durolion of
the yeor, whlch obllges the Copltotor 10 compensote providers for costs lncurred by members of
the scheme, ln the caso thot on lnsured evenl occurred

How the motter wos oddressed in the oudit:

We tesled the occurocy of lhe rlsk tronsfer olrongement fees expense. by ogreeing ihe number
of members ond rotes opplied in the colculoiions, to member records ond lhe service level
ogreement wlih the Copitotor. No inconsistencles were noted.
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lnlotmdtion othq thdn lha tinoncial stolements

The Scheme's trustees ore responsible for lnformolion other thon the flnonciol slolements which
comprlses the Stotement of Responsibillty by the Boord of Trustees, ond lhe Reporl of ihe Boord of
Irustees. This other informotlon does nol include the finonciol sfotemenls ond our ouditor,s report
ihereon,

Our opinion on the finonciol stotements does not cover thls other informotion ond we do not express
on oudlt opinion or ony torm of ossuronce conclusion thereon,

ln connection wlth our oudlt of the finoncial slolements, our responsibllity is to reod the other
InformoUon ond, in doing so, consider whether lhe other informotlon is moterlolly inconsistent wlth the
finonciol stolements or our knowledge obtoined in the oudit, or otherwise oppoors to be molerlo y
misstoied. lf, bosed on lhe work we hqve performed, we conclude thai there ls o moterial
misstotement of this other intormotion, we ore required to report thot foct. We hove nothing io repori
In this regord.

Pesponsibililies ol rhe Schemeb lruslees lot lhe Finoncidl Sldlements

The Scheme's trustees ore responsible for the preporotion ond folr presentoilon of the finonciol
stotements in occordonce with lnterno'iionol Finonciol Reporting Stondords ond the requirements of
the Medicol Schemes Acl. ond tor such internol control os the Scheme's irusiees deiermine is
necessory to enoble ihe preporotion of finonciol slotements thot ore free from moteriol mlssiotement.
whether due io froud or error.

ln preporing the finonclol stotemenls, the Sch6me's trustees ore responsible for ossesslng the Scheme's
obility 1o continue os o going concern, disclosing, as opplicoble, motters reloted lo going concern
ond uslng the going concern bosis of occounilng unless the Scheme's irustees eiiher intend to
liquidote the Scheme or to ceose operotions, or hove no reolistlc olternatlve but to do so,

Audilol's Responslbllilies lor lhe Audit ol lhe Finonciol Slolemenls

Our objeciives ore to obioin reqsonqble ossuronce obout whether the finonciol siotements os o
whole ore tree from moteriol misstotemenl, whether due to froud or e(or, ond to issue on oudit report
thoi includes our opinlon. Reosonoble ossuronce is o high level of ossuronce, but is not o guoronlee
thol on oudii conducted jn occordonce wilh ISA's will olwoys detect o moleriol mlsstotement when it
exists, lvllsstotements con orise from froud or error ond ore considered moteriol if, indivlduolly or in ihe
oggregote, they could reosonobly be expected to influence lhe economic decislons of users ioken
on the bosis of these finonciol stotemenis.

As port of on oudit in occordonce wiih ISA'S, we exercise protessionol judgemen.l ond mointoln
professionol sceptlclsm throughoui the oudi1. We olso:

. lndentlty ond ossess the rlsks of moieriol misstoiement of the finonclol stotemenis, whether due io
froud or error, design ond perform oudii procedures responsive io those risks, ond obloin oudil
evidence thot ls sufficient ond opproprloie io provide o bosis for our opinlon, The risk of not
deleciing o molerlol mlsstotemeni resulting from froud is hlgher thqn for one rosultlng from error,
os froud moy lnvolve collusion, forgery, inteniionol omlssions, misrepresentotions, or the override of
internol control.

. Obtoln on underslonding of iniernol control relevont to the oudlt in order to deslgn oudii
procedures that ore opproprlote in the clrcumstonces, bui not tor ihe purpose of expressing on
opinion on the effectlveness of ihe Scheme's internol control.

. Evoiuote the opproprioteness of occountlng policies used ond the reosonobleness of occountlng
estimotes ond reloted disclosures mode by lhe Scheme's trustees.
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. Concludo on the opproprioteness of ihe Scheme's lrustees' use of the golng concern bosls of
occounting ond bosed on lhe oudlt evldence obtoined, wheiher o moteriol uncertointy exjsls
reloted to events or condltions thot moy cost significont doubt on the Scheme's oblllty to contlnue
os o golng concern, lf we conclude ihot o moterial uncertointy exisls, we ore requlred 10 drow
ottention In our oudltor's reporf to ihe reloied disclosures in ihe finonclol siotemenls or, if such
disclosures ore inodequole, to modlfy our opinion. Our concluslons ore bosed on the oudit
evidence obtalned up to the dote of our ouditor's report. However, future events or condltions
moy couse the Scheme to ceose to contlnue os o going concern.

. Evoluate the overoll presentotion, structure ond conteni of the finonclol stotements, lnciuding the
disclosures, ond whelher the tlnonciol stotements represent the underlying ironsoctions ond
evenls in o monner thot ochieves foir presentotlon.

We communicote with the Scheme's trustees regqrding, omong other motters, the planned scope
ond timlng of the qudit ond significoni oudit findings, includlng ony signlficont def clencies ln internol
control thoi we identlty durlng our oudil,

We oJso provide lhe Scheme's Trustees with o stotement thot we hove complied wiih relevont ethlcol
requirements regording independence, ond to communlcote with them oll relotlonshlps ond oiher
motters thot moy reosonobly be thought to beor on our independence, ond where opplicoble,
reloted sofeguords,

From the motters communicoted with the Scheme's truslees, we determine those motters thot were of
most significonce in ihe oudit of ihe finonciol stotemenls of ihe cunent period ond ore therefore the
key oudit moiiers. We describe these mottem in our ouditor's repori unless low or regulotion precludes
public disclosure oboui ihe motter or when, ln exiremely rore circumstonces, we determine thot o
motter should not be communicoted in our report becouse lhe odverse consequences of doing so
would reosonobly be expected to outwelgh ihe publlc interest benefits of such communicotion,

Pepod on other Legdt dnd Regutdtory Requircments

Audit Tenure

ln terms of the lndependent Regulolory Boord for Auditors (IRBA) Rule published ln Government
Gozette Number 39475 doled 04 December 2015, we report thot we hove been fhe ouditor of Molcor
I\4edicol Ald Scheme 'or l3 yeors.

Non-complionce wlth the Medicol schemes Act of South Aftico

As required by the Council for Medicol Schemes, we report thot ihere ore no moteriol lnstonces of
non-compllonce wiih ihe requiremenls of the Medlcol Schemes Act ot South Africo, thol hove come
to our ottention during the course of our oudit,

1J^, r,u b*-*f.g.., rt t4,.t c- a,..ttt
HARRIS DOWDEN & FONTAINE
Registered Audiiors
Per: B,J. DoWDEN

Sondton
21 Aptil2022
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets

lnvestments held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

Members'funds

Cunent liabilities

Outstanding risk claims provision

Trade and other payables

Total funds and liabilities

146,424 125,114

28,154

6,'100

22,054

153,268

Notes 2020

R'000

2021

R'000

109,975

109,975

62,971

633

62,338

AA AO1

46,491

172,946 {53,268
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Risk contribution income

Relevant healthcare expenditute

Net claims incurred

Risk claims incurred

Third party claim recoveries

Net income/(expense) on risk transfer arrangements

Risk transfer arrangement fees paid

Recoveries from risk transfer arrangements

Managed care: management services

Gross healthcare tesult

Administration fees

Other administration expenses

Broker service fees

Net impairment (losses)/gains

Net healthcare result

Other income

lnvestment income
Employer group reinsurance recoveries
Sundry income

Other expenditure

Asset management fees

Total net comprehensive income for the year

Notes 2021

R'000

297,072

(281,3101

(275,352')

(276,281)

929

80

(2,901)

2,981

(6,038)

15,762

(11,450)

(3,s03)

(7e6)

(64)

(51)

2't,912

2020

R'000

299,966

(258,356)

(2s2,108)

(252,938)

830

(125)

(2,529)

2,404

(6,123)

41,610

(11 ,594)
(3,521)

(641)

5

25,86'l

12,676

10

't1

't2

t5

(315)

(315)

38,222

mre
(551)

(551)

2',t,310
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Note Total

Balance as at 1 January 2020

Total net comprehensive income for the year 38,222

Balance as at 3'l December 2020 125,1't4

Total net comprehensive income for the year 21,31o

Balance as at 3l December 2021
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

RESTATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 3'1 December 2021

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROi' OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from members and providers
. Cash receipts from members - crntributions
. Cash receipts from members and providers - other

Cash paid to providers, employees and members
. Cash paid to providers and members - claims
. Cash paid to providers and employees - non-healthcare expenditure

Sundry income

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investments

Proceeds on disposal of investments held at fair value through profit
or loss

lnvestment income

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

2021

R'000
2020

R',000

295,968 30't,007

2

12

42,010

(2,o22)

262
6,697

4,937

46,947

58,936

105,883

l 
'6.0?6 

I| 
"rf8' 

I

I oour I | '',',zs 
I

(298,097) (268,389)

I rzar,szol | | {zsr,azs1 
|

| (16,771\ | | (16,510) I

5,545

3,416

(100,219)

47,972

5,286

(,f6,96r)

(43,545)

105,883

62,338
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these linancial statements
which are consistent with those of the previous year except for the adoption of the standards, amendments
and interpretations in note'1.1.1.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements are prepared in South African Rands in accordance with lnternational
Financial Reporting Standards ("|FRS") and the requirements of the lledical Schemes Act 131 of 1998, as
amended, on a going concern basis using the historical cost basis except as stated below.

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. lt also requires management lo exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Scheme's accounting policies. The notes to the annual financial statements set out those areas involving a
high degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
Scheme's fi nancial statements.

Change in accounting policy relating to the fotmat of the Statement of Cash Flows

During 2021 the Council for Medical Schemes (CMS) published Circular 52 of 2021: Statement of Cash
Flows. ln the circular it was noted that Paragraph 19 of IAS 7 encourages entities to report cash flows from
operating activities using the direct method. The Council for Medical Schemes (CMS) introduced the direct
method in its 2011 annual statutory returns.

The Statement of Cash Flows (SOCF) has been aligned to the prescribed format as set out in Circular 52 of
2021, with the most notable changes being the reporting of cash flows from operating activities using the
direct method. The cash flows from operating activities were previously reported using the indirect method.

This change in accounting policy will be applied in preparing the Financial Statements for the year ended 31

December 2021. fhe change was applied retrospectively, with the comparative period presented as if this

accounting policy had always been applied. Note 23 sets out the change in disclosure of the Statement of
Cash Flows.

1.1.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2021 end relevant to the Scheme:

Title Effective date - financial year
commencing on or after

Amendments to IFRS I 'Financial lnstruments', IAS 39 'Financial
lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement', IFRS 7 'Financial
lnstruments: Disclosures' and IFRS 4 'lnsurance Contracts' - The

Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the implementation
of the reform of an interest rate benchmark, including the replacement ol
one benchmark with an alternative one. This amendment has not had a
material impact on the financial statements.

'l January 2021

Page 24



MALCOR II'IEDICAL AID SCHEME

NOTES TO THE FINAI{CIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.1 Basis of prcparation (continued)

1.1.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective in 2O2'l and relevant to the Scheme:

Title Effective date - financial year
commencing on or after

Amendment to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' on
Classification of Liabilities as CunEnt or Non-current - The
amendment clarifies that liabilities are classilied as either current or non-
cunent, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classitication is unaffected by expectations of the entity oI
evenls after the reporting date.

1 January 2022

IFRS '17 - lnsurance contracts - The Standard was issued in May 2017
and supersedes IFRS 4 lnsurance Contracts.
The Standard creales one accounting model for all insurance contracts
and establishes principles for the recognition, measuremenl,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts issued. The Standard
requires insurance contracts to be measured using updated estimates
and assumptions lhat reflect the timing of cash flows and takes into
account any uncertainty relating to insurance contracts.
The Standard provides for a simplified approach ("premium allocation
approach") for the measurement of a group of insurance contracts only
if, at the inception of the group, the entity reasonably expects thal the
simplification will produce measurement of the liability for remaining
coverage that would not differ materially from that produced using the
general measurement model and if the coverage period is one year or

less.
Potential impact: The Scheme has assessed the requirements of the
standard and agreed a project plan to implement the standard. The

coverage period for the Scheme's contracts is one year or less allowing
for the premium allocation approach to be applied, resulting in similar
treatment to lhe current accounting. The most notable exceptions relate

to the treatment of onerous contracts and changes to disclosures in the

financial statements.

1 January 2023
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 202'l

1.

1.2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTIt{c POLICIES (continued)

Claasification, recognition, preaentation and der€cognition of financial instruments

The Scheme recognises a financial instrument when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contraclual
provisions of the instrument. The Scheme classifies its financial instruments into the following categories:
financial assets or linancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and receivables. Loans and
receivables are receivables other than those arising from insurance conlracts and include sundry accounts
receivable and interest receivable. Loans and receivables are disclosed under trade and olher receivables

The classification depends on the purpose for which lhe financial inslruments are acquired. Management
determines the classification of financial inslrumenls at initial remgniiion. All purchases and sales of financial
instruments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Scheme commits to purchase
the financial asset or assume financial liability.

Offset
Where a legally enforceable right of offset exists for recognised linancial assets and financial liabilities, and
there is an intention to settle the liability and realise the assel simultaneously, or to settle on a net basis, all
related financial assets and liabilities are offset.

Derccognition

Financial assets are derecognised when lhe rights to receive cash flows from them have expired or where
they have been realised, and the Scheme has also transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. The Scheme derecognises a financial liability when the contracted obligation is discharged or
expires.

Financial assets

lnvestments at fair value through ptofit or loss

The Scheme recognises a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss when upon initial recognilion the
Scheme designated the asset as fair value through profit or loss. A group of financial assets is designated as
at fair value through prolit or Ioss if it is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in

accordance with the Scheme's documented risk management strategy, and information about the group of
assets is provided internally on that basis to the Scheme's key management personnel. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and the transaction cosis are expensed in

lhe profit or loss seclion of the Statement of Comprehensive lncome. The fair value of the Iinancial
instruments lraded in an active market is determined by using quoted market prices or dealer quotes. Gains or
losses arising from subsequent changes in fair value are recognised under Other lncome in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within the period in which they arise.

1.3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

1.3

PRINcIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Trade and other receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
aclive market, oiher than those lhe Scheme intends to sell in the short term. Receivables are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. The Scheme holds its lnsurance Receivables and Loans and
Receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequenlly at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade and
other receivables comprise lnsurance Receivables, arising from the Scheme's insurance contracts with its
members and Loans and Receivables. As part of the implementation of IFRS 9: Financial lnstruments, the
classilication between lnsurance Receivables and Loans and Receivables was reassessed. Based on the
reassessment, the balance reiating to Forensic receivables, previously classified as Loans and Receivables
as part of Sundry accounts receivables were reclassified to lnsurance Receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid
investments that are readily convertible lo a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value, and bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at fair value.

lmpaifment of financial assets

Financial assets canied at amodised cost

The Scheme assesses at each reporting daie, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired. A financial asset, or group of financial assets, is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and

only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a resull of one or more events that occurred after the

initial recognition of the asset (a "loss event") and that loss event (or events) has an adverse impact on the

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated

The Scheme first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets

such as service provider debtors. ln the case of assets which are not individually significant, such as

contribution debtors, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit characteristics, such as asset

type and past-due status. These characteristics are used in the estimation of future cash flows.

lf lhere is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset has been incurred, the amount of

the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amounl and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying

amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

lf, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment

loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or

deficit.

1.4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for lhe year ended 31 December 2021

1. PRIIiICIPALACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

1.4 lmpairment of financial a$ets (continued)

lmpaiment of loans and rcceivables

Prior to the implementation of IFRS 9, the Scheme applied an incurred loss model to assess impairment of
Loans and Receivables. Following the implementation of IFRS 9, the Scheme applies the IFRS I simplilied
approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for Loans and
Receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, Loans and Receivables are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and days past due. For the year under review the Scheme does not expect any
credit losses on these balances and no provision has been made.

1.5 Financialliabilities

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.

lnsunnce payables

lnsurance payables are measured initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorlised cost, using
the effective interest rate method.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers.

Page 28
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 202'l

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

'1.6 Provbions

Provisions are recognised when the Scheme has a present legal or construciive obligation as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benelits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the effect of discounting to
present value is material, provisions are adjusted to reflect the time value of money.

Outstanding isk claims provision

The outslanding risk claims provision comprises a provision made for the estimated ultimate cost of settling all
claims incurred but not yet reported at stalement of linancial position date. Outstanding risk claims are
determined as accurately as possible based on a number of factors, which include previous experience in
claims patlerns, claims settlement patterns, changes in lhe nature and the number of members according to
gender and age, trends in claims frequency, changes in the claims processing cycle, and variations in the
nature and average cost incurred per claim.

The Scheme does not discount its provision for outstanding risk claims, as the effect of the lime value of
money is not considered material.

'1.7 Risk contribution income

Contribulions are received monthly in advance.

Contributions on member insurance contracts are accounted for monlhly when their collection in terms of the
insurance contract is reasonably certain. The earned portion of risk contributions received is recognised as
revenue. Risk contributions are earned from the date of attached risk, over the indemnity period on a straighi
line basis. Risk contributions are shown before the deduction of broker service fees and other acquisition
costs.

1.8 Relevant healthcare expenditu.e

Relevant healthcare expenditure consists of net claims incurred, net income/(expense) on risk transfer
arrangemenls and managed Glre: management services.

Risk claims incuned
Risk claims incurred comprise the total estimated cost of all claims arising from healthcare events that have
occurred in the year and for which the Scheme is responsible, whether or not reported by the end of year.

Risk claims incuned comprise the total of:
. claims submitted and accrued for services rendered during the year, net of recoveries from members for co-

payments; and
. claims for services rendered during the previous year not included in the outstanding claims provision for

that year, net of recoveries from members for co-payments.

P age 29



1.

1.8

MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2021

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Relevant healthcare expenditure (continued)

Net income on isk transfer arrangements

Contracts entered in to by the Scheme with third party service providers under which the Scheme is
compensated for losses/claims (through the provision of services lo members) on contracts that meet the
classification requirements of insurance contracls are classiried as risk transfer arrangements (reinsurance
contracts). Risk transfer arrangements do not reduce the Scheme's primary obligations to its members, but
are entered into to decrease the cost the Scheme may incur as a resull of the carrying on of the business of a
medical scheme.

Only contracts that give rise to a significant transfer of insurance risk are accounted for as risk transfer
arrangemenls. Amounts recoverable under such contracts are recognised in the same year as the related
claim.

Risk transfer premiums are recognised as an expense over the indemnity period on the straight line basis. lf
applicable, a portion of the risk lransfer premiums are treated as a prepayment.

Risk transfer recoveries are presented in the statement of comprehensive income on a gross basis. They are
calculated on the basis of what it would have cosl the scheme had lhe arrangement been on a fee-for-service
basis.

Claims paid in terms of the risk transfer anangements are calculated based on estimated utilisation statistics.

Managed care: management seNices

Managed care: management services expenses comprise amounts paid or payable to a third party for
managing the utilisation, costs and quality of healthcare services to the members of the Scheme. These are
expensed as incurred.

1.9 lnvestrnent incomo

lnvestment income comprises interest and dividends on listed instruments, interest on money markel
instruments and current accounts and net gains or losses on investments at fair value through profit or loss.

lnterest is recognised on a yield to maturity basis, taking account of the principal amount outstanding and the
effeclive rate over the pe od to malurity, when it is determined thal such income will accrue lo the Scheme.

Dividends and interest are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEi'tE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. PRII{CIPALACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

1.10 Liabilities and related assets underthe liability adequacy test

Liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the member insurance contract liabilities as
at the statemenl of financial position date.

The liability for insurance contracts is tested for adequacy by comparing current best estimates of future
contractual cash flows with the carrying value of the liability net of any related assets. Where a shortfall is
identified, an addilional provision is made and charged to the statemenl of comprehensive income.

1.1'l lmpairment losses

The carrying amounls of the Scheme's assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date to
detelmine whether there is any indication of impairment. lf any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
lmpairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The Scheme's receivables are not discounted to the present value of their estimated future cash flows due to
the short term nature oftheir recoverability.

Reversal of impaitment

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does
nol exceed the carrying amount thal would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

1.12 Medical insurance contracts

Contracts under which the Scheme accepts significant medical insurance risk from another party (the
member) by agreeing to compensate the member if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event)
adversely affects the member are classified as medical insurance contracts. The contracts issued
compensate the scheme's members for healthcare expenses Incurred.

l.'13 Broker fees

Brokers'fees are recognised as incurred.
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEII'IE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.14 ReimbuEemenb from the Road Accident Fund

The Scheme grants assistance to its members in defraying expenditure incurred in conneciion with rendering
of any relevant health service. Such expenditure may be in connection with a claim that is also made to the
Road Accident Fund (RAF), administered in terms of the Road Accident Fund Act No. 56 of '1996. lf the
member is reimbursed by the RAF they are obliged contractually to cede that payment to the Scheme to the
e)dent that they have already been compensated.

Oue to the uncertainty around the confirmation and value of the RAF amounts, the Scheme accounts for
these amounts on a cash basis and recognises them as third party claim recoveries as a reduction of net
claims incuned. Recoveries from the RAF are reflecled in third party claim recoveries in lhe Slatement of
Comprehensive lncome in the current year keeping in mind that some of lhese recoveries may pertain to prior
year claims. The contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure any developments are appropriately
reflecled in the annualfinancial statements.

'l.15 Allocation of income and expenditure to benefit options

All allocations between benefit options are based on the actual income and expenditure per benefit option
with lhe exception of:
. Administration expenditure - allocaied on membership per benefit option;
. lnvestment income and assel managemenl fees - allocated pro-rata to risk contribution income per benefit

option;

. Managed care: management services - allocated on membership per benelit option;

. The additional funding component

Page 32



MALCOR iIEDICAL AID SCHEIIIE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEII'ENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2021

2. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Cost at the beginning of the year

Loss on adjustments to fair value

Fair value at the beginning of the year

Additions

Acquisitions

Reinvestment of investment income (Note 12)

Disposals

Disposals at cost
Realised (losses)/ gains on sale of investment (Note 12)

Gain/ (loss) on adjustments to fair value

Fair value at the end of the year

The investrnents included above represent investments in:

Listed instruments

Cash on hand and on deposit

Linked insurance policies

Unit linked instruments

Money market instruments

Fair value at the end of the year

The investments were managed by the following asset managers at year-end:

Sanlam Private Wealth (Pty) Ltd

Allan Gray Life (Pty)Ltd

lnvestec Wealth and lnvestment (Pty) Ltd

Satrix Managers (RF) (Pty) Ltd

Sygnia Asset Management (PtY) Ltd

The investments are non-cunent and have no lixed maturity date. The fair values

of the listed instruments are based on listed market prices and the unit price at

the statement of financial position date.

lnvestments at fair value through profit or loss are classified as non-current

assets, unless they are expecied to be realised within twelve months of the

statement of financial position date or unless they may need to be sold to raise

operating capital.

The weighted average return for the year on investments at fair value through

profit or loss was 6.7% (2020: a.82ok\.Ihe weighted average interest rate for the

year on money market instruments was 3 .97'/o (2O2O: 5.3a'h)

The asset management fees for the year comprised:

' Listed instrument management fees

' lnvestment advisor fees

2021

R'000

2020

R'000

49,173

(2,682)

46,491

100,219

99,872
347

(47,972)

(45,s55)

(2,417)

11,237

109,975

44,657

(1,244)

47,413
2,O22

2.O22

(262\
(2e3)

5t
(2.682)

46,491

3,322
1,O14

18,163

9,804
'14,188

46,491

4,336

18,163

14,188

9,804

46,491

't09,975

't 09,975

109,975
.t09,975

518

33

551

231

84

315
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2021

R'000

2020
R',000

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

lnsurance receivableg

Contributions outstanding

Member receivables

Service provider receivables

Less: Provision for impairment losses

Forensic debtors

Total insurance receivables

Financial receivables

lnterest receivable

Total fi nancial receivables

Total trade and other receivables

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair values
due to the short term maturilies ofthese assets.

Reconcillation of impairment losses
Members' and seMce providers' portions that are not recoverable

Balance at the beginning of the year
Amount recognised in lhe statement of comprehensive income for the year

Provisions made during the year

Over provisions reversed during the year

Balance at end ofthe year

8

105

608

(460)

143

4U

77

117

667

861

(5s8)

242

505

389

389

894

)ro

229

633

598

(139)

141

(280)

459

659

(61)

133

(1%)
598
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MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2021

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current accounts

Short term cash deposits

The weighted average interest rate for the year on current accounts was 3.29%
(2020: 4.10ok\.

The weighted average interest rate for the year on short term cash deposits was
4.12o/o (2O2O: 5.37%1.

5. OUTSTANDING RISK CLAIMS PROVISION

Outstanding rEk claims provision

Analysis of movement in outstanding risk claims provision

Balance at beginning of year

Payments in respect of prior year

Over/ (under) provision in respecl of prior year (Note 8)

Adjustment for the cunent year (Note 8)

Outstanding risk claims provision

There is no provision for outstanding claims covered by risk transfer
arrangements as this is not considered to be material to the Scheme.

2021 2020
R'000 R'000

17,127 17,968

45,211 87,9'15

52,338 105,883

5,750 6,100

6,100 6,900

(s,534) (6,916)

566 (16)

5.'184 6,1 16

5,750 6,100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2021

5. OUTSTANDING RISK CLAlIrilS PROVISION (continued)

Proc6s used to determine the assumptions

ln order to qualify for benefits any claim must, unless otherwise arranged, be submitted to the Scheme not later than the
last day of the fourth month following the month in which the healthcare service was rendered.

Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, Glse by case basis with due regard to the daim circumstances,
information available from managed care management services and historical evadence of the size of similar claims. The
provisions are based on information currently available. However, the ultimate ljabilities may vary as a result of
subsequent developments. The percentage of the estimated gross claims paid in 2022 in respect of the 202'l financial
year by 31 March 2022 (2O2O:31 March 2021) was 90.93% (2020: 88.97%).

The cost of outstanding claims as estimated as follows:
. actual claims notified and assessed during the three months succeeding the Iinancial year end of the Scheme,

. an estimate of claims, using claims information, for the fourth and subsequent months succeeding the fnancial year
end of the Scheme. Historical claims development information is used on the assumption that this pattern wjll occur
again in the future and;

. ln addition to normal claims. the Scheme should also raise a provision icr State COVID-1g vaccinations that were
incurred until 31 December 2021. The Department of Health only started submitting claims for vaccinations canied out
at the state facilities to medical schemes from December 2021.

There are reasons why this may not be the case, which, insofar as they can be identified, have been allowed lor by
modifying the method. Such reasons include:
. changes in the processes that affecl the developmenvrecording of claims paid and incurred (such as changes in claims

reversing proc€dures);
. economic, legal, political and social trends (resulting in different than expecied levels of inflation and/or minimum

medical benefits to be provided);
. changes in composition of memberships, and
. random fluctuations, including the impact of large losses.

The trustees believe that the liability for claims reported in the statement of financial position is adequale and no
additional provision is required in terms of a liability adequary test.
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NOTES TO THE FINANC'AL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2021

5. OUTSTANDING RISK CLAIMS PROVISION (conthued)

Changes in assumpiions and aensitivitie to changB in key variables

The table below outlines the sensitivity of insured liability estimates to particular movements in assumptions used in the
estimation process. lt should be noted that this is a deterministic approach Wth no correlations between the key variables.
Where variables are considered to be immaterial, no impact has been assessed for insignificant changes to these
variables. Particular variables may not be considered material at present. However, should the materiality level of an
individual variable change, assessment of changes to that variable in the future may be required.

An analysis of sensitivity around various sc€narios for the general medical insuranc€ business provides an indication of
the adequacy of the estimation process. The Trustees believe that the liability for risk claims reported jn the statement of
financial position is adequate. However, they recognise that the process of estimation is based upon certain variables
and assumptions which could difier when claims arise. Consequently if, br example, the estimate of the unrecorded
portion of risk claims for the year was 5% under- or overstated, the impact on the net surplus of the Scheme would be as
follows:

lmpact on reported surplus due to changes in key variables:
Change in
variablea

Variation in Variation in
claims cost claima costs

2021
R'000

Il
10
99

2021 2020
R',000 R'000

5o/o

s%
50/o

2020
R',000

126
14

132

This analysis has been prepared for a variation in claims run-off factors with other variables remaining constant. An
increase or decrease in the provision will result in an increase or decrease in the surplus as follows:

Hospitalisation
Chronic medication
Day{o-day benefits

lncrease in claims

lncrease in outstanding risk claims provision

Decrease in net comprehensive income

Desease in claims

Decrease in outstanding risk claims provision

lncrease in net comprehensive income

The sensitivity of the estimation process is reduced by the value of the
relating to the period ended 31 December 2021.

(200) (272)

risk claims paid subsequent to the year end

(272)

272

(200)

200

200
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for the year ended 31 December 2021

6. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

lnsurance liabllities

Risk contributions received in advance

Reported claims not yet paid

Balance at the beginning of lhe year

Movements for the year

Total arising ftom insurance liabilities

Financial liabllities

Accrued expenses

Balances due to related parties -

Discovery Health (Pty) Ltd

Total MedicalAid Administrators (Pty) Ltd

Provision for audit fees

Total arising from financial liabilities

Total trade and other payables

Reported risk claims not yet paid comprise risk claims that have been received
and processed for payment. They have been accounted for in the relevant
healthcare expenditure for the current year but will only be paid next year.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair values
due to the short-term maturities ofthese liabilities.

16,415

2,344
2,086

254

18,759

3

1 ,596
1,444

152
414

2,O13

20,772

17,4U
2,086

1,678

408

19,570

1,875

1,423

452
397

2,484

22,Oil
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for the year ended 31 December 2021

7. RISK CLAIMS INCURRED

Current year claims

Claims not covered by risk transfer anangement
Claims covered by risk transfer arrangement

Movement in outstanding risk cla,ms provision (Note 5)
L,nder provision ln respect of prior year

Adjustment for current year

Risk claims lncuned

NET INCOME/ (EXPENSE) ON RISK TMNSFER ARRANGEi'ENTS

National HealthCare Group (Pty) Ltd

Risk transfer arrangement fees paid

Recoveries under risk transfer arrangement

Net lo33 (income) on risk transfer arangement

The Scheme has a capitation agreement with National Hea,thoare Group (Pty)
Ltd. National Healthcare Group (Pty) Ltd bears the cost for all related individual
claims less than R600,000 (2020: R600,000) for members on Plan D through
their network of suppliers. Should National HealthCare croup (Pty) Ltd default on
payment of these claims, the Scheme will be held liable for the cost.

MANAGED CARE: MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Disease management services

Hospital management services

Pharmaceutical benefit management services

Provider network management services

Services provided by:

Discovery Health (Pty) Ltd

lsimo Health (Pty) Ltd

2021

R',000

2020

R'000

270,531

267,550

2,941

5,750

566

5,1U

276,281

2,90'1

(2,981)

(80)

246,838

244/U
, ANA

6,100

(816)

6,916

252,938

2,529

(2,4M',t

125

1,924

1,947

609

1,643

6,123

6,085

38

5,123

1,90'l

1,918

600
't,6'19

6,038

6,000

38

6,038
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEIIj|ENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2021

,IO. ADMINISTRATIONFEES

Accredited services

Customer services

lnformation management and dala control

Claims management

Member record management

Contribution management

Financial management

Other services
Forensic investigations and recoveries

lnternal audit services

Actuarial seMces

Govemance and compliance

Additional services

Quality Management and Monitoring Services

Advanced Data Analytics

Digital Service Offering

Product lnnovation

Enhanced Service Offering

Enterprise risk management services

Legal Services

II. OTHER AOMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Audit fees
Audit services - current year

Audit services - under provision prior year

Audit committee chairman fees

Bank charges
Advisory fees
Council for Medical Schemes levies

Other administration expenses
Principal offi cers' fees
Professional indemnity insurance

Trustee remuneration
Trustee reimbursements - travel costs

2021

R'000

2020

R'000

3,808

2,699

974

1,480

1,300

39

395
,163

149

,52

1g
124

46

30

25

25

7

11,450

414
414

45
108

'I ,858
200

58
b/6
46

.'u

3,503

3,862

2,727

988

1,497

1,315

40

401

164

151

32

'155

126

46

30

26

7

r1,594

419
397

22

117

1,U3
188

56

697

44

3,521
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for the year ended 31 December 2021

12. NET IIIPAIRMENT LOSSES

lnsurance receivableg

Members' and service providers ponions that are not recoverable

Movement in provision

Recoveries

13. INVESTTIENT INCOME

Scheme

lncome from available,for-sale investments reinvested (Note 2)

lnterest income

Money market instruments

Listed instruments

Dividend income

Realised gains /(losses) on sale of investments

Fair value adjustment on investments at fair value through prolit or loss

lnterest on cash and cash equivalents

2021

R',000

2020
R',000

(64)

139

(203)

(or)

2,417

11,237

579

16,357 3,2U

5

ol
(s6)

2,'tu
2,042

1,787

s2

(31)

(2,682)

724

5,273
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t4. (DEFICITYSURPLUS PER BENEFIT OPTION

Risk clntribution inclme

Relevant healthcare expenditure
Net claims incuned 8

Risk claims incuned
Third party claim recoveries

Net income on risk fansfer
arrangements 9

Risk transfer arrangement
fees paid

Recoveries from risk transfer
arangemenls

Managed care: management
seryices 10

Gross healthcare result

Adminislration fees 10

Other adminstration expenses 1'l
Broker fees

Net impairment losses '12

Net healthcare result

PLAN A
R'000

(961)

(6,850)

(1,7e/.1

(557)

(22s1

21

(e,3%)

5,943

3,828

2,115

(122)

(3,573)

669

PLAN B
R'000

14,241\

't4,766

(7,886)

(2,48t\
(494)

(104)

3,821

14,341

10,950

3,404
26

(384)

17,818

3,000

PLAN C

R'000

PLAND TOTAL

R'000 R'000

Other income

lnvestment income

69,,191 198,770

(75,341) (184,003)
(75,380) ('179,762\

(75,637) (180,376)

257 613

25,510 3,271

(18,064) (2,901)
(17,229\ (2,981)

117,287\ (2,98r)
59

-80

- (2,90'r)

- 2,981

(836)

7,475 371

(1,s54) (227',)

(485)

(53) (24)

19

5,402 1t9

'1,,108 '181

''Tr t:'

(4s)

6,764

599

297,O72

(281,310)

(275,352]-

(276,281)
929

80

(2,901)

2,9A1

(6,038)

15,762

(11,450)

(3,503)

(7s6)

(64)

(51)

21,912
16,367

5,519

26

(55r)

21,310

4,407

13

Employer group reinsurance recoveries
Sundry income

Asset managemenl fees

Net (deficit)/surplus for the year

Number of members at year-end

300

139

Refer lo note 1.14 for basis of allocation of certain income and expenses to Plan options
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14. (DEFICITySURPLUS PER BENEFIT OPTION (continued)

Notes PLAN A
R'000

PLAN D TOTAL

R'000 R'000

PLAN B
R'000

PLAN C

R'000

Risk c)o|lt ibution incne 73,745 199,395 23,93'1 2,895 299,966

Relevant heafthcare expenditure 177,8401 (164,471) (13,517) (2,5291 (258,356)

Nel daims incuned 8 (76,815) (160,155) (12,735't (2,404l (252,108)

Risk claims incuned (77,070) (160,687) (12,777) (2,404) (252,938)

Third party claim recoveries 255 532 42 - 830
Net income on risk transfer I
anangements - (125) (1251

Risk transfer anangement
fees paid - (2,s291 (2,529)
Recoveries from risk transfer
arangements - 2,404 2,404

Managed care: management '10

services (1,025) (4,316) (782) - (6,123)

Gross heallhcare result (4,095) 34,924 10,414 366 41,610

Administration fees 10 (1,907) (8,020) l1,45/.l (211't (11,592)

Other adminEiration expenees 11 (589) (2,483) (449) - (3,521)

Broker fees (181) (398) (43) (19) (641)

Net impairment losses 12 10 (13) I - 5

Net healthcare result (6,762) 24,010 8,476 136 25,861

Other income 4,349 8,005 2A9 33 12,676

rnvesknent income 13 I 785 ll 2,176 ll 28e ll 33 ll 3,284 
I

Employer group reinsurance recoveries I s,s0l ll 5,826 ll ll ll 9,38s 
I

sundry income I 3l I - ll 3l

Asset management fees

Net (deflcit)/surplus for the year

Number of members at year-end

(57) (23e)

12,471\ 31,776

723 3,085

(1e)

4,747

589

(315)

38,222

4,531

169

134

Refer to note '1.'14 for basis of allocation of cErtain income and expenses to Plan options
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t5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The administrator and advisors of the Scheme are involved in organisations which provide contractual services to the
industry including the Scheme and ils members.

Key management peBonnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing, controlling
and advising on the activities of the Scheme. Key management personnel comprise the board of trustees, principal
officer and advisors and those providing administrative services to the Scheme. The administrator and advisor and their
family members did not receive any preferential treatment from the Scheme or its administrator.

2021

R'000

2020

R'000

Tnnsactions with key management personnel

Statement of comprehensive income lransactions

Principal offi cers' fees

Principal officer and trustees:
- Risk contributions received

- Risk claims incurred

Trustee remuneration

Trustee reimbursements

879

621

96

862

806

The lerms and conditions of the above related party transactions were as {ollows:

Transactions Nature of transactions and their terms and conditions
Risk contributions received This constituies risk contributions paid by the related parties as members of the Scheme.

All contributions were on the same terms as applicable to other members.

Risk claims incurred This conslitutes risk claims incurred by the related parties as members of the Scheme. All
claims were paid out in terms of the rules of the Scheme.

Discovery Health Proprietary Limited

Statement of comprehensive income transactions

Administration fees

Managed care: management fees

Statement of financial position

Balance due at year end

2021

R'000

11,450

6,000

1,444

2020

R'000

'11,594

6,085

1,423

Dismvery Health (Pty) Ltd provides administration and managed Grre services to the Scheme. Discovery Health (Pty)

Ltd has signilicant influence over the Scheme and it participates in the Scheme's financial and operating policy

decisions but does not control the Scheme.
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15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

Total Medical Aid Administrato.s Propdetary Limited

Statement of comprehensive income transactions

Advisory fees

Statemenl of financial position

Balance due at year end

National Healthcare Group Proprietary Limited

Statement of comprehensive income transaclions

Risk transfer arrangement fees paid

Employer Groups

Statement of comprehensive income transactions

Reinsurance recoveries

2021

R'000

2020
R'000

Discovery Third Party Recovery Services Proprietary Limited

Statement of comprehensive incrme transactions

Road Accident Fund recoveries 727 367

The Scheme has contracted Discovery Third Party Recovery Services Proprietary Limited (DTPRS), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Discovery Health Proprietary Limited, to manage lhe indentification and collection of third party recoveries
from the Road Accident Fund.

'1,858

152

1,843

452

16.

2,901 2,529

5,519 9,389

The administration and managed care management service agreements are in terms of the rules of the Scheme and in

accordance with instruclions given by the Board of Trustees. The agreements are automatically renewed each year

unless notification of termination is received or following the cancellation of the Administrator's accreditation or the

issue of a laMul directive to this effect by the Council for Medical Schemes in terms of the Medical Schemes Acl, No

131 of 1998, as amended. The Scheme and lhe Administrator/Managed Healthcare Organisation shall be entitled to
terminate the agreement by giving notice in writing of not less than 90 days and not more than 180 days. The

outstanding balances bears no inlerest and is due within 7 days.

FIDELITY AND PROFESSIONAL INDEMNITY COVER

ln terms of section 33(3) of the Medical Schemes Act, Camargue UndeMriting Managers Proprietary Limited,

undeMritten by Bryte lnsurance Company Ltd, Compass lnsurance Company Ltd and Lloyds Bank Of London Lid, has
provided professional indemnity and fidelity insurance of R25 million (2020: R25 million) to the Scheme.

The staff ofthe administrator were covered against fidelity claims through their employer indemnity insurance.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND AREAS OF KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

ln the process of applying lhe Scheme's accounting policies, the trustees are required to make critical assumplions
regarding the future and accounting judgements. ln the current and prior year the most signiricant estimates were

considered to be the determination of:
. The outstanding risk claims provision (Refer note 5 to the financial statements); and

. The provision for impairment losses (Refer note 3 to the financial statements).

ln the opinion of the Board of Trustees, these esiimates and assumptions are not likely to create a significant risk of a

material adjustment to the carrying values of assets and liabilities during the next Iinancial year.

17.
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I8. INSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating medical insurance rEk

The primary medical activity caffied out by the Scheme assumes the risk of loss from members and their dependants
who are directly subject to medical insuran@ risk. These risks relate to the health of the Scheme members. As such
the Scheme is exposed to the uncertainty surrounding the timing, severity of claims, changing epidemiology, and
unexpected catastrophic events under each contract. The Scheme also has exposure to market risk such as changing
member profiles and investment activities.

The Scheme uses several methods to assess and monitor medical insurance risk exposures both for individual types of
risks insured and overall risks. The principal risk is that lhe frequency and severity of claims is greater than expected.
lnsurance events are, by their nature, random and the ac{ual number and size of events during any one year may vary
from those estimated using established statislical techniques.

Chronic medicine benefits cover the cost of medicines for conditions listed in the Chronic Disease Lisl such as high
blood pressure, cholesterol and asthma, as well as prescribed medicines for other specified conditions which are
categorised as chronic, and are paid according to accepted protocols, and may be subjecl to limits.

As a result of regulations under the Medical Schemes Act, medical schemes are required to provide Prescribed
Minimum Benefits, and the Scheme makes every effort to be compliant with this requirement. Such benefits are
provided according to the regulated criteria and protomls.

Day to day benefits cover the cost (up to 100% of the Malcor rate for the appropriate year) of all out of hospital
services, such as visits to medical practitioners and dentists, services rendered by auxiliaries and supplementary
services, as well as prescribed non-chronic medicines.

Management informalion, including contribution income and claims ratios per plan is reviewed monthly.

Medical insurance risks facing the Scheme

The most significant medical insurance risk facing the Scheme is that risk contribution income will not be sufficienl to
cover risk claims expenditure and non-healihcare costs and will therefore not result in a surplus to enable the Scheme
to achieve and maintain the required accumulaled funds ratio.

Expected claims are determined on the basis of past claims experience, allowing for the effec{s of tariff and utilisation
increases, and changes in benefit design. Prices are determined and managed according to changes in the National
Health Reference Price List ("NHRPL") published by the Department of Health in 2006 and subsequently escalated by
medical inflation annually, regulated fees such as dispensing fees, and negotiations with providers in certain major
medical expense categories, Contributions are calculated so as to cover those claims, non-healthcare costs, and
provide a surplus. There is always the risk that the past claims were overslated or understated, and/or that the
calculations could be affected by changes in the membership profile or regulatory requirements, and that the
contributions could consequently be calculated on the inconect basis.
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18. INSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Medical insurance risks facing the Scheme (continued)

It is necessary, due to regulatory requirements for registering benelits and contributions in advance for the ensuing
year, to estimate tariff increases and increases in beneflt utilisation before negotiations with certain provider groups can
be concluded. The eldenl of increases in the single exit prices for medicines also have to be estimated. All these
factors constitute a risk that the results for the ensuing year will be affecled by the use ofthe incrrrect assumptions.

Changes in the membership profile as a result of plan selection, ageing of beneliciaries and demographics pose a risk
to the Scheme, due to the effect they could have on claims experience, even though these factors are constantly
monitored.

Concentration of medical insurance risks

The following table summarises the concentration of insurance risk per beneficiary, with reference to the carrying
amount, net of adjustments, ofthe insurance claims incurred by age group and in relation to the type of dsk covered.

Average claims per beneficiary per year

<25

25-34
35-49
50-64
>65

Age grouping (in years)

2021

Unlimited Limited
risk* risk*
RR
5,913 6,668

8,900 11,424
'13,054 13,090

25,844 16,010

42,tu1 18,115

2020

Unlimited Limited Total
risk* risk'.
RRR
5,215 5,349 10,564

8,738 10,569 19,307
't 1 ,209 11 ,499 22,708

24,270 13,108 37,374

39,524 15,486 55.010

Total

R

12,580

20,323
26,'145

41,854

60,656

* Unlimited risk claims comprise lhe cost to the Scheme of hospitalisation and related in-hospital treatment, Prescribed
Minimum Benefits and chronic conditions for which there are no individual annual claim limits.

.* Limited risk claims comprise the cost to the Scheme of all benefits for which there is an individual annual claim limit.

Management of forensic risk

The administrator provides a forensic service which analyses claims and investigates possible fraud and abuse of the
benelits by providers and members, and institutes appropriate action.
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18. INSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risk tran sf er arra n ga m enfs

For a number of years the employer groups have elecled to arrange stoPloss reinsurance cover outside the Scheme
for hospilal claims in excess of R300,000 per claim. The Scheme therefore has no requiremenl for reinsurance for its
hospital claims. Nevertheless the employer groups have undertaken to contribute any reinsurance claim proceeds that
they receive in lerms of this cover to the Scheme by way of additional funding.

The Scheme has a capitation agreement with National Healthcare Group (Pty) Ltd which in relurn for a premium
payable per member bears the risk for all individual claims less than R600,000 (2020: R600,000) per member in
respecl of all members of Plan D.

Sensitivry to insurance risk

A sensitivity analysis reflecting the impact on the Scheme's reported results for the year is as follows; A 170 movement
in either direclion in lhe cost of risk claims incurred with all other variables held constant would have either a negative
or positive effect of R2,73 million (2020: R2,53 million) on the Scheme's risk claims incurred and net surplus for the
year. The unlimited risk claim portion of this total amounts to R1,48 million (2020: R1 ,00 million).
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I9. FINANCIAL RISK i'ANAGEMENT

Overview

The Scheme's activilies expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effecls of changes in equity market prices,
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, The Scheme's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potentially adverse effects on lhe ,inancia! performance of
the investments, which the Scheme holds to meet its obligations to its members.

Risk management and investment decisions are made by the trustees in consultation with the investment advisor.

Flnancial risk factors

Cunency isk
The Scheme operates in South Africa and therefore its cash flows are denominated in South African Rand.

lnterest rate isk
The investments of the Scheme, both long term and short term, comply with the regulations as set out in Regulation 30,
annexure B, ofthe MedicalSchemes Act.

Returns on inlerest bearing investments vary according to Reserve Bank monetary policy decisions.

The table below summarises the Scheme's exposure to interest rate isk. lncluded in the table are the Scheme's
investmenls at carrying amounts. The investments that are subject to interest rate risks have been aged by the
estimated period in which they could reasonably be liquidated.

Up to I 'l .3 Grcater Non-interest Total
month months than 4 bearing
R'000 R'000 months R'000 R'000

As at 3l December 2021 R'000

lnvestmenls at fair value through prolit or loss 109,975 - '10s,975

Cash and cash equivalents 62,338 - 62,338

172,313 - 172,313

As at 3l December 2020

lnvestments at fair value through profit or loss 36,687 9,804 46,491

Cash and cash equivalents 105,883 - 105,883

142,570 9,804 152,374

Non-interest bearing investments comprise investment in equity, commodities, property and preference shares.
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19. FII{ANCIAL RISK MANAGEiTENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit isk
The Scheme's principal Iinancial assets comprise investments held at fair value through protit or loss, trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Scheme's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for impairment. An
allowance for impairment is made where there is an identitied loss event which, based on previous experience, is
evidence of a reduclion in the recoverability of the cash flows. Dedvative counterparties (if applicable) and cash
transactions are limited to high credit quality tinancial institutions.

With respecl to availablefor-sale investments and cash and cash equivalents the Scheme limits iis counterparty
exposure by only dealing with financial institutions lhat have high external credit quality ratings. The Scheme has a
policy of limiting the amount of credit exposure to any one linancial instatution in accordance with the limitation on asset
requirements specified in the Regulations to the Medical Schemes Act.

Credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables is controlled through the application of credit monitoring
procedures. Section 26(7) of the Medical Schemes Act requires all contribulions to be paid to the Scheme within 3
days of becoming due. \Milst every effort is made to enforce this requiremenl the onus is on lhe member/employer
group to ensure compliance. The rules of the Scheme provide for suspension and ultimately termination of
membership after specified periods of non-compliance.

Exposure to credit risk

lnsurance receivables

Contribution receivables irember and provider
claim receivables

Carrying amount

Past due but not impaired - carrying amount

30 - 60 days

61 - 90 days

91 days +

Collectively impaired - carrying amount

Neither past due not impaired

2021

R'000

2020

R'000

2021

R'000

714

23

7

460

45

537

2020

R 000

784

103

37

62

77

598

8377

Past due but not impaired
Contribution and member and provider receivable payments are past due but the Scheme believes that impairment is
not appropriate on the basis of lhe stage of collection of amounts owed to the Scheme.
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Collectively impaired/allowance for impai ment
Trade and other receivables are recoverable but, in exceptional circumstances small amounts may be irremverable.
These irrecoverable amounts are wriien off as bad debts.

Capital adequacy risk
The Scheme's obiective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to conlinue as a going concern in order to
provide benefits for its stakeholders.

The principal risk is that the frequency and severity of claims is greater than expected and that there are insufficient
reserves to provide for their settlement.

The Medical Schemes Acl, 13'l of 1998 requires a minimum accumulated funds (solvency) ralio, calculated as
accumulated funds expressed as a percentage of registered contributions, of 25%. The Scheme's solvency ratio based
on registered contributions was 45.87% (2O2O: 41.71%\ al31 December 2021.

Liquidw risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The availability offunding through liquid holding

cash positions with various financial institutions ensures that the Scheme has the ability to fund the day-to-day

operations of the Scheme.

The table below summarises the Scheme's financial liabilities analysed by the expected maturity dates.

Uptol 'l -3
month months
R'000 R'000

3,563 2,337

20,772

24,335 2,337

4,687

21,657

26,344

1,413

1,4',13

Total

R'000

5,S00

20,772

26,671

6,'100

22,O54

n,153

4-12
monthS
R'000As at 31 December 2021

outstanding risk claims provision

Trade and oiher payables

As at 3l December 2020

outstanding risk claims provision

Trade and other payables 397

397

Matuet dsk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as the interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and

credit spreads will affect the Scheme's investment income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The

objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure wilhin acceptable parameters,

while optimising the return on investments,
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factorE (conlinued)

Sensitivity isk
Listed and unit-linked investments
A 5% movement in the market value of inveslments in either direction would have had either a positive or negative

effect of R5,499 million (2020: Rl,615 million) on the market value ofthe portfolio at year end.

Fair value estimation
IFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements of financial instruments by level in terms of lhe following fair
value measurement hierarchy:

' Level I fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

. 
assets or liabilities

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (such as derived from prices).

' Level 3 fair value measuremenis are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the assel or

liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

2021 2020

lnvestments at fair value through profit or loss R 000 R'000

Direclly listed instruments - 4'336

Unit linked listed instruments 109'975 27 '967
Money market instruments - 14'188

109.975 46,491

The Scheme's investmenls are all valued on a level 2 basis. For the 2020 financial year the only level 1 investments

were the directly listed inslruments above.

Unconsolidated investment structures

The Scheme invesls monies in reputable funds which provide retums to the Scheme. The Scheme's view is lhat these

funds are not unconsolidated struciured entities. The Scheme monitors the performance of the funds closely to ensure

high earnings without unnecessary exposure to risk. The Scheme's exposure to risk is limited to the fair value of lhese

investments.
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As at 3l December 2021

lnvestments

Held at fair value through profit
or loss

Money market instruments

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

As at 3l December 2020

lnvestmenls

Held at fair value through profit
or loss

Money markel instruments

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Breakdown of inveltments

The following table analyses the linancial assets and financial liabilities ot the Scheme per class of assets and liabilities:

lnvestnents al
fair value

through prolit or
los3

R'000

Financial lnsurancs
assots raceivables and

(payables)

R'000 R'000

32,303

14,188

ou,or',

ar,aaa
229

62,*7

,ou,rra
389

106.271

4M
(18,759)
(18,3s5)

505

(19,570)
(19,066)

rr,oia,
(2,013)

12,484)
(2,484\

Total
carrying
amount

R'000

109,97s

62,338

633
(20,772)
152,'t74

32,303

14,188

105,883

894
(22,O54\

131,214

Fair
valu6

amount

R'000

109,975

62,338

633

\2O,772)
152,174

32,303
'14,188

'105,883

894
(22,0541

131,2',14

Finarcial
liabilities at
rmortised

cost

R'000

109,975

',or,riu

Page 53



MALCOR MEDICAL AID SCHEME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2021

20. NON COMPLIANCE WITH MEDICAL SCHEME LEGISLATION FOR THE YEAR UI,IDER REVIEW

20.1 Late payment of contributions

Nature and impact
ln terms of Section 26(7) of the Act, conlributions should be received in accordance with the rules of the
Scheme. ln terms of the Scheme rules, conlributions are required to be received no later than three days
after their due date. During the financial year certain contributions were identified that were not paid to the
Scheme within this deadline period.

Causes offailure
The failure was mainly caused due to administrative delays by certain participating employers in paying over
their respective contributions to the Scheme.

Corrective action
Whilst every effort is made lhrough credit control procedures to enforce this requirement, the onus is on the
member/employer group to ensure compliance. The loss of interest to the Scheme from this delay is

minimal.

20,2 lnvestmenb in participating employers and medical scheme administratoE

l{ature and impact
Section 35(8)(a), (c) and (d) of the Acl states that a medical scheme shall not invest any of its assets in
participating employers, medical scheme administrators or persons associated with these organisations.
During the year the Scheme did have investments in certain of lhese organisations.

causes of failure
The Scheme invests in investment vehicles which allow investment managers discretion to invest in
organisations of their choice. Certain of these choices have resulted in the Scheme having investments in

organisations which are in conflict with this Section of the Act.

Corrective action
The Scheme has received exemption from the provisions of this Section from Council on the grounds that
the investments are made, without reference to the Scheme, by the asset managers in the portfolios in
which the Scheme invests. These investment choices are therefore not influenced by the Scheme.
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NON COMPLIAI{CE VVITH MEDICAL SCHEME LEGISLATION FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
(continued)

20.3 Sustainability of benefit options

Nature and impact
ln terms of section 33(2) of the Act, each benetit option shall be self-supporting in terms of membership and
tinancial performance. At 31 Decembet 2021 one of the four benelit options incurred deficits as set out in
note '14 to the annual financial statemenls.

Causes of failure
Plan A was deliberately costed lo incur a delicit as the increase in contributions necessary to achieve a
surplus would have been loo onerous for members on this plan and might lead to members changing to
other plans to the detriment of the Scheme as a whole.

Corrective action
The Trustees are expecting this trend for Plan A to conlinue in future. The performance of all benefit options
is monitored on a continuous basis with a view to improving their financial outcomes, and the Scheme
continually evaluates different strategies to address the deficit in these benefit options.

When strucluring benefit options, the flnancial suslainability of all the benetit options is considered. The

different financial positions rellect the different disease burdens in each benefit option, among many other

factors. The Scheme's strategy on the sustainabilily of benefit options has to balance short and long-lerm

financial considerations, fairness to both healthy and sick members, and continued affordability of cover for
members with different levels of income and healthcare needs. While the Scheme is committed to complying

wherever possible with the applicable legislation, it also focuses intensively on the overall stability and

financial position of lhe Scheme as a whole and not only individual benefit oplions.

ln addition, the Scheme continually provides the Registrar with updates on both the Scheme and individual

benefit option performance through the monthly management accounts and quarterly monitoring meetings.
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20. T{OT{ COiIPLIANCE WTH ]UEDICAL SCHEME LEGISLATION FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
(continued)

20.4 Late payment of claims

Nature and impact

Section 59(2) of the Act requires that medical schemes shall pay a member or a supplier of service, any
benefit owing to that member or supplier oi service within 30 days after the day on which the claim in respect
of such benelit was received by the medical scheme.

Causes of failure

Late payment of claims usually resulted from members or providers submitted claims without the necessary
details for these payments to be made timeously. These are isolated cases and thus do not have a material
effect on the Scheme.

Corrective action

The necessary assistance is provided to the idenlified members and healthcare providers to ensure that
these types of isolated cases are minimised.

2,I. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There were no other events after the reporting date that had a malerial impact on the Scheme.

22. CONTINGENT ASSETS

The Scheme has approximately R3 366 105 (2020: R3 384 469) in recoveries outstanding from the Road

Accident Fund (RAF) for claims paid on behalf of members. The general likelihood of recovery of these

amounts is uncertain, and the Trustees have elected not to recognise a debtor on the statement of financial
position as any future remveries are contingent on a multitude of faclors. The Trustees consider, based on

past experience and the current financial stability of the RAF, that the debtor, were it to be recognised would

be impaired by R3 366 '105 (2020: R3 384 469).
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23. GHANGE IN THE ACCOUNTING POLICY. FORMAT OF THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2020 RESTATED

CASH FLOWS FROiI OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from members and providers
. Cash receipts from members - contributions
. Cash receipts from members and providers - other

Cash paid to providers, employees and members
. Cash paid to providers and members - claims
. Cash paid to providers and employees - non-heallhcare expenditure

Sundry income

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTII{G ACTIVITIES

Purchase of inveslments
Proceeds on disposal of investments held at fair value through
prorit or loss

lnvestment income

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

I{ET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PREVIOUSLY PRESENTED

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIT{G ACTIVITIES

Cash inflow from operations before working capital changes

Working capital changes
. Decrease in trade and other receivables
. lncrease/(Oecrease) in outstanding risk claims provision
. (Decrease)/(lncrease) in trade and olher payables

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investments

Proceeds on disposal of inveslments held at fair value through
prolit or loss

lnvestment income

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2020

R'000

(268,389)

Trz1s?ri
I tr o,sr or I

9,392

42,010

(2,O22)

262

6,697

4,937

46,947

34,907

719
(800)

7,884

42,710

(2,o22)

262

5,997

1,237

16,917
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